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introduction to the
Old Post Office
Tower

The Old Post Office Tower is a federally protected site offering picturesque views of the nation's
capital. From the 270-foot observation deck visitors are treated to a view overlooking several of
the United States' prized structures. The Capitol, White House, Washington Monument,
Pentagon, Smithsonian Museums, Supreme Court, and Lincoln Memorial are easily observed
from the 12'^-floor. On a clear day visibility may exceed 12 miles. National Park Service
rangers are on duty at the lobby, ninth floor, and observation deck to educate visitors about the

110-year-old building and surrounding attractions.

The Post Office
Years

The United States Government constructed

the Postal Building between 1892 and 1899.

The architect behind this masterpiece was

Willoughby J. Edbrooke, better known for co-

designing the Georgia State Capitol.

Edbrooke took his inspiration from the famed

architect H.H. Richardson's design for the

Allegheny County Court House in Pittsburgh,

Pennsylvania. Originally the building

contained the Washington, D.C.

post office, the Postal Department

Headquarters, and the Dead Letters Museum.

The Dead Letters Museum provided an

interesting display of items that the U.S. Post

Office was unable to deliver. Thousands of

stored items were kept in the museum. Two

noteworthy exhibits were a lock of hair from

President Garfield's assassin and a set of

Benjamin Franklin's account books.

Decline of the Old
Post Office

The Old Post Office Tower faced potential

razing in 1934 after the Postal Department

Headquarters moved to the newer Ariel Rios

building which currently houses the

Environmental Protection Agency. Locals

considered the Old Post Office Tower

unappealing due to changing tastes in

architecture and the construction of distinctly

different government buildings in the Federal

Triangle area. The onset of the Great

Depression and diversion of federal funds to

more critical needs spared the Old Post Office

Tower its first proposed demolition. From

1935 to 1978, the Old Post Office building

accommodated many government offices

including the D.C. field office and training

operations for the Federal Bureau of

Investigation. By the mid- 1970s, disrepair,

fires, and piles of trash were commonplace

throughout unused building spaces. Metal

sheets covered the glass atrium. The interior

was so dim that one could not see the ceiling

from the lower levels.

Rescue and
Restoration

In 1970, the U.S. Congress approved

permits for a second attempt to demolish the

Old Post Office Tower. Nancy Hanks, then
chair of the National Endowment for the

Arts, found this troubling. "Old buildings are

like old friends," she informed Congress.

"They reassure people in times of rapid

change. They encourage people to dream

about their cities - to think before they build,

to consider alternatives before they tear

down." Hanks' testimony Inspired concerned

citizens to picket and protest demolition. In the

end, the government saved the Old Post Office

Tower and placed it on the National Register of

Historic Places in 1973. President Ronald

Reagan rededlcated the renovated Old Post

Office Tower in 1983 as The Nancy Hanks

Center.




